ForwardHealth Provider Portal Professional Claims

March 11, 2024



Table of Contents

1	Introduction	. 1
2	Access the Claims Page	. 2
3	Submit a Professional Claim	. 6
	3.1 Professional Claim Panel	. 7
	3.1.1 Diagnosis Panel	. 9
	3.1.2 Condition Panel	11
	3.1.3 Medicare Information (Header) Panel	12
	3.1.4 Anesthesia Panel	13
	3.1.5 Other Insurance Header Information Panel	13
	3.2 Detail Panel	17
	3.2.1 NDC Panel	19
	3.3 Other Insurance Detail Information Panel	20
	3.4 Other Insurance EOB Information Panel	23
	3.5 Medicare Information (Detail) Panel	27
	3.6 Attachments Panel	28
	3.7 Submit the Claim	28

1 Introduction

Providers may submit professional claims directly to ForwardHealth using Direct Data Entry, an online application, available through their secure provider account on the ForwardHealth Portal.

2 Access the Claims Page

1. Access the Portal at https://www.forwardhealth.wi.gov/.



Figure 1 ForwardHealth Portal Homepage

2. Click Login. A Sign In box will be displayed.

ForwardHealth	
Sign In	
Username	
1	
Keep me signed in	
Next	
Unlock account?	
Help	
Logging in for the first time?	

Figure 2 Sign In Box

3. Enter the user's username.

4. Click **Next**. A Verify with your password box will be displayed.

ForwardHealt	<u>h</u>
Verify with your pass @ PORTALUSER1	sword
Password	
[1
*****	•
verify	©
••••••• Verify Forgot password?	©

Figure 3 Verify With Your Password Box

- 5. Enter the user's password.
- 6. Click **Verify**. The user's secure provider page will be displayed.

Wisconsin.gov home state agencies subject directory department of health services	
ForwardHealth Wisconsin serving you	Welcome Inpatient03 UAT » May 7, 2019 2:35 PM Logout
Home Search Providers Enrollment Claims Prior Authorization Remittance Advices Trade Files Account Contact Information Online Handbooks Site Map User Guides Certification	Health Check Max Fee Home
You are logged in with NPI: 1255334173, Taxonomy Number: 282N00000X, Zip Code: 53226, Financial Payer: Medicaid Providers	Search
What's New?	Home Page
Providers can improve efficiency while reducing overhead and paperwork by using real-time applications available on the new ForwardHealth Portal. Submission and tracking of claims and prior authorization requests and amendments, on-demand access to remittance information, 835 trading partner designation, and instant access to the most current ForwardHealth information is now available.	Update User Account Customize Home Page Demographic Maintenance Electronic Funds Transfer Check My Revalidation Date Revalidate Your Provider Enrollment Check Enrollment
 New Rate Reform Part 3 Ideas/Recommendations Requested. 	
Incentive Payments Are you Eligible?	
ForwardHealth System Generated Claim Adjustments	Quick Links
	Register for E-mail Subscription

Figure 4 Secure Provider Page

7. Click **Claims** on the main menu at the top of the page. The Claims page will be displayed.



Figure 5 Claims Page

All claim type submission options are available from this page.

3 Submit a Professional Claim

1. Click **Submit Professional Claim** in the "What would you like to do?" section of the Claims page. The Professional Claim form will be displayed.

Next Search By: ICN					search		clear		ew Search
				I					
Professional Claim									0
Required fields are indicated with an ast	terisk (*).								
ICN 2222229001012	Re	endering Provider	00000000	NPI [Search]				
Provider ID 1234567890 NPI	Ref	erring Provider 1	1212121212	NPI []	Search]				
Last Name por	Ken	dicare Disclaimer	na diselaimer	Sea	rch]				
First Name, MI JOHN	Other Ins	surance Indicator	V						
Date of Birth 05/05/1995									
Patient Account #		Total Charge"	\$370.00						
Medical Record	Other In	nsurance Amount	\$0.00						
SOI Date		otal Amount Paid		50					
501 0410		Net Difference	\$04	.32					
Diagnosis Condition Medicare Anes	thesia Other Insura	nce							
Detail									_
Line Number From Date of Service	1 To Date of Service 05/03/2022	Procedure Code M 80051 T	<u>4od1 Mod2 Mod3 Mo</u> rc	PAY	<u>Units</u>	<u>Charge</u> \$75.00			
2 05/03/2022	05/03/2022	80051 2	26	PAY	1.00	\$75.00			
3 05/01/2022	05/01/2022	80424 T	TC 26	PAY	1.00	\$220.00			
4 05/01/2022	Select	row above to updat	te -or- click Add button	below.	1.00	\$0.00			
Line Number			Rendering Pr	rovider				[Search	
From Date of Service			Referring Prov	vider 1				[Search	
To Date of Service			Referring Prov	vider 2				[Search	1
Procedure Code	[Search]		Ordering Pr	rovider				[Search	
Modifiers [_Se	arch] [S	earch]	[Search]	Search]					
Diagnosis Code Pointers									
Units									
Charge				Status					
Place of Service Code	sarch]		Allowed A	mount					
Emergency 🗸			CoPay A	mount					
Notes		Pr	ofessional Service Desc	ription					
Notes		Pr	ofessional Service Desc	ription				elete	Add
Notes		Pr	ofessional Service Desc	ription			D	elete	Add
Notes		Pr	ofessional Service Desc	ription				elete	Add
Notes	1	Pr	ofessional Service Desc	s0.00	•		D	elete	Add
Notes NDCs for 2Code Medicare Information(Detail) Line Number ; Medicare Date Paid Medicare Date Paid	1	Pr Medicare Ded Medicare Coinsi	ofessional Service Desc uctible	s0.00	*		D	elete	Add
Notes	1 \$0.00	Pr Medicare Dedi Medicare Coins Psychiatric Red Medicare Cops	uctible urance uuction	s0.00 \$0.00 \$0.00	* * *		D	elete	Add
Notes	1 \$0.00 \$0.00	Pr Medicare Dedi Medicare Coins Psychiatric Red Medicare Copa	ofessional Service Desc uutible uurance uurance	s0.00 \$0.00 \$0.00 \$0.00	+ + + + +			elete	Add
Notes NOCs for JCode Nedicare Information(Detail) Line Number ; Medicare Paid Amount Medicare Paid Amount	1	Pr Medicare Dad Medicare Coins Psychiatric Red Medicare Copa emaining Patient Lia	ofessional Service Desc uctible luction luction lyment ability*	\$0.00 \$0.00 \$0.00 \$0.00 \$0.00	+ + + =			elete	Add
Notes	1 \$0.00 \$0.00 Re	Pr Medicare Dedi Medicare Coinsi Psychiatric Red Medicare Copa smaining Patient Lla	ofessional Service Desc uctible urance yment billty*	\$0.00 \$0.00 \$0.00 \$0.00 \$0.00	+ + + + - =		Þ	elete	Add
Notes NDCs for 2code Medicare Information(Detail) Line Number Medicare Date Paid Medicare Paid Amount Medicare Non Covered Charge Attachments *** No rows found ***	1 \$0.00 \$0.00 	Pr Medicare Dedi Medicare Colar Psychiatric Red Medicare Copa armaining Patient Lia	ofessional Service Desc uctible urance u urance urance urance urance urance ura	s0.00 \$0.00 \$0.00 \$0.00 \$0.00	* * * =			elete	Add
Notes	1 \$0.00 \$0.00 Re Select	Pr Medicare Ded Medicare Coins Psychiatric Red Medicare Copa amaining Patient Lia row above to updat	ofessional Service Desc uctible urance function myment bility*	ription \$0.00 \$0.00 \$0.00 \$0.00 \$0.00	+ + + +			elete	Add
Notes	1 \$0.00 \$0.00 Re Select	Pr Medicare Ded Medicare Coins Psychiatric Red Medicare Copa armaining Patient Lia	ofessional Service Desc uctible urance fuection yment bility" te -or- click Add button	ription \$0.00 \$0.00 \$0.00 \$0.00 \$0.00 \$0.00	+ + + - =		D	elete	Add
Attachment Control Number Attachment Control Number	1 50.00 \$0.00 Re Select	Pr Medicare Ded Medicare Coins Psychiatric Red Medicare Copa amaining Patient Lia row above to updat	ofessional Service Desc uctible uturion uturion bility* te -or- click Add button	ription \$0.00 \$0.00 \$0.00 \$0.00 \$0.00	+ + + = =		D	elete	Add
Attachment Attachment Control Number Attachment Control Number Description	1 \$0.00 \$0.00 Re Select	Pr Medicare Ded Medicare Coins Paychiaric Red Medicare Copa amaining Patient Lia row above to updat	ofessional Service Desc uctible urance u u urance u u u u u u u u u u u u u u u u u u	ription \$0.00 \$0.00 \$0.00 \$0.00 \$0.00	+ + + = =		P	elete	Add
Anticipation of the second se	1 \$0.00 \$0.00 Re Select	Pr Medicare Ded Medicare Coins Psychiatric Red Medicare Copa amaining Patient Lia row above to updat	ofessional Service Desc uctible uuction luuction bility" te -or- click Add button	\$0.00 \$0.00 \$0.00 \$0.00 \$0.00	+ + + + = =		D	elete	Add
Anticy Family Control Notes NDCs for Xcode Medicare Information(Detail) Medicare Paid Amount Medicare Pai	1 \$0.00 \$0.00 Re Select	Pr Medicare Ded Medicare Coins Psychiatric Red Medicare Copa maining Patient Lia row above to updat	ofessional Service Desc uctible urance function yment te -or- click Add button	\$0.00 \$0.00 \$0.00 \$0.00 \$0.00 \$0.00	+ + + + = =		P	elete	Add
Attachment Control Number	1 \$0.00 Re Select	Pr Medicare Ded Medicare Coins Peychiatric Red Medicare Copa amaining Patient Lia	ofessional Service Desc uctible urance utuction ubility" te -or- click Add button	\$0.00 \$0.00 \$0.00 \$0.00 \$0.00 \$0.00	+ + + = =		P	elete	Add
Attachment Control Number Attachment Control Number Claim Status Information Claim Status Information	1 \$0.00 Re Select	Pr Medicare Ded Medicare Coins Psychiatric Red Medicare Copa amaining Patient Lia row above to updat	ofessional Service Desc uctible urance u urance urance urance urance ura	1000 1000 1000 1000 1000 1000 1000 100	+ + + = =		P	elete	Add
Attachments Attachments Attachments Claim Status Information Claim Status Pay	1 \$0.00 \$0.00 Re Select	Pr Medicare Ded Medicare Coins Psychiatric Red Medicare Copa armaining Patient Lia row above to updat	ofessional Service Desc uctible urance luction ment te -or- click Add button	190.00 \$0.00 \$0.00 \$0.00 \$0.00 \$0.00	+ + + + - = =		P	elete	Add
Anticy Family C Notes N	1 \$0.00 \$0.00 Ra Select	Pr Medicare Ded Medicare Coins Psychiatric Red Medicare Copa armaining Patient Lia row above to updat	ofessional Service Desc uctible urance function ment te -or- click Add button	ription \$0.00 \$0.00 \$0.00 \$0.00 \$0.00 \$0.00	+ + + + +			elete	Add
Attachments Attachment Control Number Claim Status Information	1 50.00 Re Select	Pr Medicare Ded Medicare Coins Peychiatric Red Medicare Copa amaining Patient Lla row above to updat	ofessional Service Desc uctible urance bility" te -or- click Add button	1000 1000 1000 1000 1000 1000 1000 100	+ + + + = =			elete	Add
Attachment Control Number Attachment Control Number Claim Status Information Claim Status In	1 50.00 Re Select	Pr Medicare Ded Medicare Coins Psychiatric Red Medicare Copa amaining Patient Lia row above to updat	ofessional Service Desc uctible urance u urance urance urance urance ura	ription \$0.00 \$0.0	+ + + + - =		P	elete	Add
Attachments Attachments Attachments Attachments Attachments Claim Status Information Clai	1 \$0.00 \$0.00 Ref Select	Pr Medicare Ded Medicare Coins Psychiatric Red Medicare Copa row above to updat	ofessional Service Desc uctible urance luccion yment te -or- click Add button	ription 50.00 50.00 50.00 50.00 50.00 50.00	+ + + + - =			elete	Add
Anticle Second	1 \$0.00 \$0.00 Re Select	Pr Medicare Ded Medicare Coins Psychiatric Red Medicare Copa emaining Patient Lia row above to updat	ofessional Service Desc uctible function ment te -or- click Add button	ription 50.00 50.00 50.00 50.00 50.00	+ + + +			elete	Add
Attachments Attachment Control Number Claim Status Information Claim Status Information Claim Status Information Claim Status Pay Claim Claim Claim Claim Status Pay C	1 So.00 Re Select	Pr Medicare Ded Medicare Coins Peychiatric Red Medicare Copa amaining Patient Lia row above to updat	ofessional Service Desc uctible urance te-or- click Add button bility*	ription 50.00 50.00 50.00 50.00 50.00 50.00 50.00	+ + + + =		P	elete	Add
Attachments Attachments Attachments Attachments Claim Status Information Claim Status Information Claim Status Information Claim Status Par Claim Core 09177022 Paid Date 091777022 Paid Amount 594.52 EDB Information 0 9817 Per policy, FG 1 9918 Pricting Adjunt	1 Sol.00 Re Select rovardHealth used the rovardHealth used the	Pr Medicare Dadi Medicare Coins Psychiatric Red Medicare Copa amaining Patient Lia row above to updat	ofessional Service Desc uctible urance uuction te -or - click Add button	ription \$ 50.00 50	+ + + + - =			elete	Add
Painty Fainty of the second	1 So.00 So.00 Re Select Select	Pr Medicare Ded Medicare Coins Psychiatric Red Medicare Copa maining Patient Lia row above to updat row above to updat billing provider en billing provider en	ofessional Service Desc uctible urance function the or click Add button bility" te -or - click Add button	ription 50.00 50.0	+ + + + - =			elete	Add
Attachments	1 So.00 So.00 Re Select	Pr Medicare Ded Medicare Coins Psychiatric Red Medicare Copa annaining Patient Lia row above to updat row above to updat billing provider en b billing provider en b billing provider en owable fee pricing a	ofessional Service Desc uctible urance urance urance te -or- click Add button bility* te -or- click Add button comment to determine r poplied.	ription 50.00 50.0	+ + + + - =			elete	Add
Painty Fainty C Notes Notes Notes Notes Notes Notes Medicare Information(Detail) Medicare Norean Date Pail Medicare Paid Amount Medicare Paid Amount Medicare Paid Amount Medicare Paid Amount Medicare Non Covered Charge Medicare Norean Source Attachments Medicare Norean Source Claim Status Information Description Information 0 09:17 9:18 Perplice, Ferplice, First 1 09:18 2 09:18 2 09:18 3 09:18	1 So.00 So.00 Re Select rwardHealth used the rwardH	Pr Medicare Dedi Medicare Coins Psychiatric Red Medicare Copa amaining Patient Lia row above to updat row above to updat soliling provider en billing provider en	ofessional Service Desc uctible uuctible uuction uuction uuction uuction te -or- click Add button te -or- click Add button click	ription 50.00 50.0	+ + =			elete	Add
Painty Fainty of Painty Pai	1 So.00 So.00 Re Select	Pr Medicare Ded Medicare Coins Psychiatric Red Medicare Copa maining Patient Lia row above to updat row above to updat billing provider en billing	ofessional Service Desc uctible urance function the or click Add button te -or click Add button click add bu	ription 90.00 50.0	* * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * *			elete	Add
Panny Faminy C Notes Notes Notes Notes Notes Notes Notes Notes Notes Notes Notes Notes Notes Notes Notes Notes Notes Notes Notes Notes Notes Notes Notes Notes Notes Note	1 S0.00 S0.00 Re Select	Pr Medicare Ded Medicare Coins Psychiatric Red Medicare Copa and the second second second participation of the second second second row above to updat row above to updat soliling provider en soliling provider en soliting provider e	ofessional Service Desc uctible fuction ment te -or- click Add button colument to determine r rollment to determine r applied.	ription 50.00 50.0				elete	Add

Figure 6 Professional Claim Form

3.1 Professional Claim Panel

Users may enter a claim's header information on the Professional Claim panel.

Note: Fields marked with an asterisk (*) are required fields.

ICN	2222229001012	Rendering Provider	00000000	NPI [Search]
Provider ID	1234567890 NPI	Referring Provider 1	1212121212	NPI [Search]
Member ID*	0123456789	Referring Provider 2		[Search]
Last Name	DOE	Medicare Disclaimer	no disclaimer	~
First Name, MI	JOHN	Other Insurance Indicator	~	
Date of Birth	05/05/1995			
atient Account #		Total Charge*	\$370.00	
Medical Record Number		Other Insurance Amount	\$0.00	
SOI Date		Total Amount Paid	\$64.	.52
		Net Difference		

Figure 7 Professional Claim Panel

Information cannot be entered in the ICN field. ForwardHealth will automatically assign an internal control number (ICN) when the claim is submitted.

For all providers except hospitals, the Provider ID field will be populated with the National Provider Identifier (NPI) under which the user is logged in.

For users logged in with a hospital account, this field will have drop-down menu containing the hospital's main NPI and any sub-part NPIs assigned to that hospital.

From the Provider ID drop-down menu, select the NPI to be indicated on the claim being submitted.

Professional Cla	im			-14 P.
Required fields are	indicated with an asteri	sk (*). Click the arrow to se	elect a sub-part NPI.	
ICN		Rendering Provider		[Search]
Provider ID	1234567890 NPI 🔸	Referring Provider 1		[Search]
Member ID*	1234567890 NPI	Referring Provider 2		[Search]
Last Name	1234509876 NPI	Medicare Disclaimer	no disclaimer	-
First Name, MI	0987612345 SUB	Other Insurance Indicator	-	
Date of Birth				
Patient Account #	5	Total Charge*	\$0.00	

Figure 8 Provider ID Drop-Down Menu for Hospital Accounts

2. Enter the member's ID in the Member ID field.

Note: After entering the member's ID, click anywhere on the gray area of the form. The Last Name, First Name, MI, and Date of Birth fields will populate with the member's information.

- 3. Enter the provider's internal number assigned to the patient's account in the Patient Account # field.
- 4. Enter the provider-assigned medical record number for the service(s) being processed in this claim in the Medical Record # field.
- 5. Enter the NPI of any provider who performed services in the Rendering Provider field.
- 6. Enter the NPI of the provider, or providers, who referred the member for services in the Referring Provider 1 and Referring Provider 2 fields if applicable. Users may enter an NPI in the field, or search for the NPI using the adjoining Search link.

Note: If a field exists at both the header and detail level, enter the information in one or the other but not necessarily both. The header will apply automatically to all details. Enter information at the detail only if different than the header value for these details.

- 7. Select a Medicare disclaimer status from the Medicare Disclaimer drop-down menu for traditional Medicare Part A, traditional Medicare Part B, or Medicare Advantage payers. The only valid options include the following:
 - No Disclaimer—No disclaimer exists.
 - 7 Mcare disallowed/denied pymt—Medicare has disallowed or denied the payment according to Medicare rules. This code applies when Medicare denies the claim for reasons related to policy (not billing errors), or the member's lifetime benefit, spell of illness, or yearly allotment of available benefits is exhausted.
 - *8 Noncovered Mcare srv*—The service provided to the member was not billed to Medicare because the service is not covered under certain circumstances.

Note: The Medicare Disclaimer field should be used to indicate a claim by a Medicare provider for a member with Medicare coverage that the provider wishes to have processed as if it were a primary claim by ForwardHealth (that is, not secondary to Medicare). If a Medicare disclaimer is used, no information should be entered in the Medicare Information (Header) or the Medicare Information (Detail) panels.

- 8. The Other Insurance Indicator drop-down menu is no longer used on claims submitted on or after June 14, 2014, but remains on this panel for viewing claims submitted before June 14, 2014. Providers are required to use the Other Insurance Header, Detail, and EOB Information panels to report other insurance (OI) information.
- 9. Enter the total charge for the service(s) being provided to the member in the Total Charge field.
- 10. Enter the amount that was paid by a commercial insurance carrier in the Other Insurance Amount field.

Information cannot be entered in the Total Amount Paid field. The total amount paid will be automatically calculated after the claim is submitted.

11. The Net Difference is the paid amount differences between the original ICN and adjustment ICN. This amount is displayed after an adjustment is processed to completion (paid/deny) for an ICN.

3.1.1 Diagnosis Panel

1. Click **Diagnosis** at the bottom of the Professional Claim panel.

	indicated with an asteris	K ().		
ICN	2222229001012	Rendering Provider	00000000	NPI [Search]
Provider ID	1234567890 NPI	Referring Provider 1	1212121212	NPI [Search]
Member ID*	0123456789	Referring Provider 2		[Search]
Last Name	DOE	Medicare Disclaimer	no disclaimer	~
First Name, MI	JOHN /	Other Insurance Indicator	~	
Date of Birth	05/05/1995			
tient Account #		Total Charge*	\$370.00	
Medical Record		Other Insurance Amount		
Number		Other Insurance Amount	\$0.00	
SOI Date		Total Amount Paid	\$64	.52
		Net Difference		

Figure 9 Diagnosis Link

The Diagnosis panel will be displayed.

Diagnosis Condition Medicare Anesthesia Other Insurance							
Diagnosi	s					?	
Sequence	1	Diagnosis 1	[Search]				
Sequence	2	Diagnosis 2	[Search]				
Sequence	3	Diagnosis 3	[Search]				
Sequence	4	Diagnosis 4	[Search]				
Sequence	5	Diagnosis 5	[Search]				
Sequence	6	Diagnosis 6	[Search]				
Sequence	7	Diagnosis 7	[Search]				
Sequence	8	Diagnosis 8	[Search]				
Sequence	9	Diagnosis 9	[Search]				
Sequence	10	Diagnosis 10	[Search]				
Sequence	11	Diagnosis 11	[Search]				
Sequence	12	Diagnosis 12	[Search]				

Figure 10 Diagnosis Panel

2. Enter a diagnosis code from the International Classification of Diseases (ICD) coding structure in the Diagnosis 1 field or search for a code using the Search link to the right of the field.

Note: Do not use a decimal point when entering a diagnosis code. For example, for ICD diagnosis code 041.00, enter 04100.

For more information about covered services and reimbursement, refer to the ForwardHealth Online Handbook.

To search for a diagnosis code, complete the following steps:

• Click **Search** to the right of the applicable Diagnosis field. The Diagnosis search panel will be displayed.

Diagnosis 1		[Close]
Search		3
Diagnosis Description	ICD Version	search clear
Search Results **** No rows found ***		

Figure 11 Diagnosis Search Panel

- Enter a description of the code.
 - o If the entire description is unknown, enter a key word or partial description.
 - o When entering a partial description, use the percent symbol (%) as a wildcard search character on either side of a word to display all codes containing that word.
- Click **Search**. Any diagnosis codes matching the query will be displayed in the Search Results section of the panel.

Diagnosis 1			[Close]
Search			3
Diagnosis		ICD Version	
Description	influenza		
			search clear
Search Re	sults		
Diagnosis /	ICD Version	Description	
487	ICD-9	INFLUENZA	
4870	ICD-9	INFLUENZA WITH PNEUMONIA	
309	ICD-10	INFLUENZA DUE TO CERTAIN IDENTIFIED INFLUENZA VIRUSES	
J09X	ICD-10	INFLUENZA DUE TO IDENTIFIED NOVEL INFLUENZA A VIRUS	
J09X1	ICD-10	INFLUENZA DUE TO IDENT NOVEL INFLUENZA A VIRUS W PNEUMONIA	
J09X3	ICD-10	INFLUENZA DUE TO IDENT NOVEL INFLUENZA A VIRUS W GI MANIFEST	
J10	ICD-10	INFLUENZA DUE TO OTHER IDENTIFIED INFLUENZA VIRUS	
J100	ICD-10	INFLUENZA DUE TO OTH IDENTIFIED INFLUENZA VIRUS W PNEUMONIA	
J1008	ICD-10	INFLUENZA DUE TO OTH IDENT INFLUENZA VIRUS W OTH PNEUMONIA	
J102	ICD-10	INFLUENZA DUE TO OTH IDENT INFLUENZA VIRUS W GI MANIFEST	
		1 2 3 Next >	

Figure 12 Search Results Panel

• Click the applicable diagnosis code. The Diagnosis search panel will close, and the selected code will populate the Diagnosis field.

Diagno	sis		
Sequence	1	Diagnosis 1 487	[Search]
Sequence	2	Diagnosis 2	[Search]
Sequence	3	Diagnosis 3	[Search]
C	4	Discussion 4	

Figure 13 Diagnosis Code Added to Professional Claim Form

3. Add additional diagnosis codes to the claim, if necessary. To delete a diagnosis code, erase the entry.

Note: The same procedure can be used for other search links on the Professional Claim form.

4. Enter additional diagnosis codes, if necessary. Providers may enter up to 12 diagnosis codes per claim.

3.1.2 Condition Panel

Through the Condition panel, users can enter a code(s) identifying a condition related to this claim, if applicable. For more information, refer to the UB-04 Billing Manual available through the National Uniform Billing Committee website at http://www.nubc.org/.

1. Click **Condition** at the bottom of the Professional Claim panel.

Medical Record Number	Medical Record Number		Other Insurance Amount				\$0.00			، مراجع را در ب ار می ای مار	····
×			Total Amount Paid				\$0.00				
Diagnosis Condition	iagnosis Condition Medicare Anesthesia Other Insurance										
Detail											
Line Number From Dat	te of Service	To Date of Service	Procedure Code	Mod1	Mod2	Mod3	Mod4	Status	Units	Charge	
A 1									0	\$0.00	
		Type data b	below for new re	ecord.							
Line Number	1		Rendering Provider							[Sear	ch]
From Date of Service*											ak J.

Figure 14 Condition Link

The Condition panel will be displayed.

Condition			3
Sequence 1	Condition 1	[Search]	
Sequence 2	Condition 2	[Search]	
Sequence 3	Condition 3	[Search]	
Sequence 4	Condition 4	[Search]	
Sequence 5	Condition 5	[Search]	
Sequence 6	Condition 6	[Search]	
Sequence 7	Condition 7	[Search]	
Sequence 8	Condition 8	[Search]	
Sequence 9	Condition 9	[Search]	
Sequence 10	Condition 10	[Search]	
Sequence 11	Condition 11	[Search]	
Sequence 12	Condition 12	[Search]	

Figure 15 Condition Panel

- 2. Enter the code that identifies conditions relating to the claim that may affect processing in the Condition Code 1 field or search for a code using the Search link to the right of the field.
- 3. Enter additional condition codes, if necessary. Providers may enter up to 12 condition codes per claim.

3.1.3 Medicare Information (Header) Panel

Through the Medicare Information panels (Header and Detail), users can report Medicare (or Medicare Advantage Plan) payment and adjustment information, which allows ForwardHealth to process a Medicare secondary claim. Note: If Medicare does not cover the entire claim, do not use the Medicare Information (Header) and/or Medicare Information (Detail) panels. Return to Step 7 of 3.1 Professional Claim Panel to select the appropriate Medicare disclaimer code.

1. Click **Medicare** at the bottom of the Professional Claim panel.

Medical Record Number	Medical Record Number		Other Insurance Amount				0.00	a da a sa sa sa	می را د می ^ر مرکمی در سار می بر س ^{ار}			
		Total Amount Paid						\$0.00				
Diagnosis Condition N	viagnosis Condition Medicare Anesthesia Other Insurance											
Detail												
Line Number From Date	e of Service	To Date of Service	Procedure Code	Mod1	Mod2	Mod3	Mod4	<u>Status</u>	Units 0	Charge \$0.00		
		Type data b	elow for new r	ecord.								
Line Number 1			Rendering Provider							[Search]		
From Date of Service*			Referies Revides have a set							an a Is Smarsh J.		

Figure 16 Medicare Link

The Medicare Information (Header) panel will be displayed.

Medicare Information(Heade	r)			?
Medicare Date Paid		Medicare Deductible	\$0.00	
Medicare Paid Amount	\$0.00	Medicare Coinsurance	\$0.00	
Medicare Non Covered Charge	\$0.00	Psychiatric Reduction	\$0.00	
		Medicare Copayment	\$0.00	
				Clear

Figure 17 Medicare Information (Header) Panel

- 2. Enter the date that Medicare paid the claim in the Medicare Date Paid field.
- 3. Enter the amount Medicare paid for the claim in the Medicare Paid Amount field.

Note: The Medicare paid amount on the Medicare Information (Header) panel should be a sum of the paid amounts on the Medicare Information (Detail) panel. The paid amounts must be entered on both panels or the claim will not pay correctly.

4. Enter the amount of the claim not allowed by Medicare in the Medicare Non Covered Charge field. (The noncovered amount on the Medicare Information [Header] panel is the difference between the claim's total charge amount on the Professional Claim panel and the Medicare paid amount on the Medicare Information [Header] panel.)

The Medicare Deductible field will be inactive on the Medicare Information (Header) panel. The Medicare deductible amount must be entered on the Medicare Information (Detail) panel. The Medicare Coinsurance field will be inactive on the Medicare Information (Header) panel. The Medicare coinsurance amount must be entered on the Medicare Information (Detail) panel.

The Psychiatric Reduction field will be inactive on the Medicare Information (Header) panel. The Medicare psychiatric reduction amount must be entered on the Medicare Information (Detail) panel.

The Medicare Copayment field will be inactive on the Medicare Information (Header) panel. The Medicare copayment amount must be entered on the Medicare Information (Detail) panel.

3.1.4 Anesthesia Panel

1. Click Anesthesia at the bottom of the Professional Claim panel.

Medical Record Number	·····	Other	Other Insurance Amount \$0.00							·····	
		Total Amount Paid					\$0.00				
Diagnosis Condition Medicare Anesthesia Other Insurance											
Detail											
Line Number From Dat	e of Service	To Date of Service	Procedure Code	Mod1	Mod2	Mod3	Mod4	Status	Units	Charge to oo	
A 1		Turne data b		ii					U	\$0.00	
Line Number	1	Type data t	below for new r	ecora.							
From Data of Consists	-		Re	enderin	g Provi	der				[Search]	
From Date of Service*		a	Rej	fortion	Rrovide	at a			4.55		



The Anesthesia panel will be displayed.

Primary Procedure Code	[Search]	
Secondary Procedure Code	[Search]	

Figure 19 Anesthesia Panel

- 2. Enter a primary anesthesia ICD procedure code in the Primary Procedure Code field or search for a code using the Search link to the right of the field, if applicable.
- 3. Enter a secondary anesthesia ICD procedure code in the Secondary Procedure Code field or search for a code using the Search link to the right of the field, if applicable.

3.1.5 Other Insurance Header Information Panel

The Other Insurance Header Information panel is used to enter header level information for each OI carrier.

1. Click **Other Insurance** at the bottom of the Professional Claim panel.

Medical Record Number		Other	Insurance Amou	unt	- / / / / / / / /	\$	0.00	- 24 - 194 19		، می مرد د د م ب	
			Total Amount Pa	aid 🖌	-		\$0.	00			
Diagnosis Condition Medicare Anesthesia Other Insurance											
Detail											
Line Number From Date	e of Service	To Date of Service	Procedure Code	Mod1	Mod2	Mod3	Mod4	<u>Status</u>	Units 0	Charge \$0.00	
		Type data b	below for new r	ecord.							
Line Number		Rendering Provider								ch]	
From Date of Service*			Referries Revides 1								ab J.

Figure 20 Other Insurance Link

The Other Insurance Header Information panel will be displayed. The <u>Other Insurance Detail</u> <u>Information</u> and <u>Other Insurance EOB Information</u> panels will also be displayed further down the form.

Other Insurance	e Header Information		
*** No rows found	***		
Carrier Number	[Search]	Payment Date	
Carrier Name		Payment Amount	
Claim Filing	v	OI Circumstance	
			Delete Add

Figure 21 Other Insurance Header Information Panel

2. Click **Add**. The page will refresh, a yellow row will be added to the top of the panel and the fields will become active to allow for information to be entered.

Other Insurance	e Header Info	ormation							
Carrier Number	Carrier Name	<u>Claim Filling</u>	Payment Date	Payme	ent Amount				
Carrier Number*		[Search]			Payment Date				
Carrier Name*					Payment Amount		\$0.00		
Claim Filing*				•	OI Circumstance	•			
								Delete	Add

Figure 22 Add Other Insurance

3. Enter a carrier number and name, or search for a carrier using the Search link next to the Carrier Number field.

To search for a Carrier complete the following steps:

• Click **Search** to the right of the Carrier Number field. The Carrier Number search panel will be displayed.

Carrier Number		[Close]
Search		3
Carrier Number		
Carrier Name		
1		search clear
Search Result	ts	
*** No	rows found ***	
	Date of Service.	

Figure 23 Carrier Number Search Panel

- Enter a full or partial name for the carrier, if the user knows the carrier's number, they may also search using that number.
- Click **Search**. Any carrier matching the query will be displayed in the Search Results section of the panel.

Carrier Number		[Close]
Search		્ર
Carrier Number		
Carrier Name	AETNA	
5.	search	clear
Search Resul	ts	
Carrier Number	Carrier Name	
001	AETNA SERVICES INC 009	
002	AETNA SERVICES INC 024	
01H	AETNA US HEALTHCARE 076	
02H	AETNA SERVICES INC 434	
03B	AETNA SERVICES INC 728	
03H	AETNA SERVICES INC 704	
04H	AETNA US HEALTHCARE 106	
05H	AETNA SERVICES INC 042	
06H	AETNA US HEALTHCARE 032	
07H	AETNA SERVICES INC 723	
	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 Next >	

Figure 24 Search Results Panel

• Click the applicable carrier. The Carrier Number search panel will close, and the selected carrier's number and name will populate the carrier fields.

Other Insuranc	e Header Information								
Carrier Numbe	r Carrier Name	Claim Filling	Payment	t Date F	Payment Amoun	t			
A 001	AETNA SERVICES INC 009			4	50.00				
Carrier Number*	001 [Search]			Pay	ment Date				
Carrier Name*	AETNA SERVICES INC 009)		Payme	ent Amount		\$0.00		
Claim Filing*			•	OI C	ircumstance	•			
								Delete	Add

Figure 25 Carrier Number and Name Added to Professional Claim Form

Note: The above procedure can be used for other search links on the Professional Claim Form.

4. Add additional carriers to the claim if necessary.

To delete a carrier, select the applicable row and click **Delete**.

5. Select the Claim Filing from the drop-down menu.

Claim Filing*		•
		5
Votali	11-Other Non-Federal Programs	
Jetan	12-Preferred Provider Organization (PPO)	
Line Number	13-Point of Service (POS)	<u>_</u>
A 1	14-Exclusive Provider Organization (EPO)	
Line A	15-Indemnity Insurance	
Line M	17-Dental Maintenance Organization	
From Date of S	AM-Automobile Medical	
To Date of C	BL-Blue Cross/Blue Shield	
TO Date of S	CH-Champus	
Procedure	CI-Commercial Insurance Co.	
M	DS-Disability	
Ivit	FI-Federal Employees Program	
Diagnosis Code P	HM-Health Maintenance Organization	
	LM-Liability Medical	
	OF-Other Federal Program	
C	TV-Title V	
Diago of Convice	VA-VA Plan	
Place of Service	WC-Workers Compensation Health Claim	
Eme	ZZ-Mutually Defined	

Figure 26 Claim Filing Drop-down Menu

The claim filing indicates the type of OI billed prior to Medicaid claims submission.

- 6. Enter the Payment Date.
- 7. Enter the Payment Amount.

Note: The Payment Date and Payment Amount will not be active if " γ " is selected in the OI Circumstance drop-down menu. If the user inadvertently enters information in these fields and then selects " γ ," the information will be deleted and the fields will be blank.

8. Use the OI Circumstance drop-down menu to select "Y" for any of the reasons listed below.



Figure 27 OI Circumstance Drop-Down Menu

"Y" indicates the member has commercial health insurance or commercial HMO coverage, but the commercial plan was not billed for reasons including, but not limited to, the following:

- The member denied coverage or will not cooperate.
- The provider knows the service in question is not covered by the carrier.
- The member's commercial health insurance failed to respond to initial and follow-up claims.

- Benefits are not assignable or cannot get assignment.
- Benefits are exhausted.

For any carrier where OI Circumstance is set to Y, the user is not allowed to enter a paid amount, paid date, or detail or explanation of benefits (EOB) information.

9. Click Add to add any other carriers.

Other Insuranc	e Header Info	ormation					
Carrier Numbe	r Carrier Name		Claim Filling	Payment Date	Payment Amount		
A 107	DELTA DENTA	AL PLAN OF WISCONSIN	11		\$0.00		
A 001	AETNA SERVI	CES INC 009	11	01/20/2014	\$50.00		
Carrier Number*	107	[Search]		Payment D	ate		
Carrier Name*	DELTA DENTA	L PLAN OF WISCONS	IN	Payment Amo	unt		
Claim Filing*	11-Other Non-Federal Programs		-	OI Circumsta	ance 🔻		
						Delete	Add

Figure 28 Noncovered Carrier Added to Claim

When finished adding carriers, the information for the last carrier entered will be added to the top row when proceeding on to another panel or clicking the Submit button.

3.2 Detail Panel

Detail				
Line Number From Dat	of Service <u>To Date of Service</u> <u>Procedure</u>	Code Mod1 Mod2 Mod3 Mod4 Status	Units Charge	
A 1	Type d	ata below for new record.	0 \$0.00	
Line Number	1	Rendering Provider		[Search]
From Date of Service*		Referring Provider 1		[Search]
To Date of Service*		Referring Provider 2		[Search]
Procedure Code*	[Search]	Ordering Provider		[Search]
Modifiers	[Search] [Search]	[Search] [Search]		
Diagnosis Code Pointers				
Units*	0			
Charge*	\$0.00	Status		
Place of Service Code*	[Search]	Allowed Amount	\$0.00	
Emergency	•	CoPay Amount	\$0.00	
Family Planning	•			
		A		*
Notes		Professional Service Description		-
				Delete Add
NDCs for JCode			_	

Figure 29 Detail Panel

The Line Number field will be populated with the number of the detail currently being added. Line number 1 will be automatically added when the Professional Claim form is loaded.

- 1. Enter the date that the service began in the From Date of Service field.
- 2. Enter the date that the service was completed in the To Date of Service field.
- 3. Enter the procedure code that identifies the service performed or provided in the Procedure Code field or search for a code using the Search link to the right of the field.

- 4. Enter the modifier that may be added to the procedure code to provide additional information about the service performed or provided in the first Modifiers field or search for a modifier using the Search link to the right of the field. Enter all the modifiers that apply to the procedure code indicating the service performed or provided.
- 5. Enter the number (1, 2, 3, or 4) in the Diagnosis Code Pointers field that points to the applicable diagnosis code in the Diagnosis panel that indicates which diagnosis (or diagnoses) applies to this detail line.

Note: The Diagnosis Code Pointer field is only required when it is necessary to point to a diagnosis related to the detail line.

- 6. Enter the number of units billed by the provider in the Units field.
- 7. Enter the total charge of the detail line in the Charge field.
- 8. Enter a place of service code identifying where the service was provided or performed in the Place of Service Code field or search for a code using the Search link to the right of the field.
- 9. Enter a brief description in the Notes field if additional information is needed to substantiate the medical treatment indicated if the information is not supported elsewhere on the claim form.
- 10. Enter the NPI of the provider performing the services in the Rendering Physician field if the rendering provider ID is different from the ID the user is logged in with and the ID was not entered at the header level. Generally, only enter a number if there are two or more rendering providers on the claim and it is necessary to distinguish between the providers at the detail level.
- 11. Enter the NPI of the provider, or providers, who referred the member for services in the Referring Provider 1 and Referring Provider 2 fields if applicable and if the ID was not entered at the header level.
- 12. Select **Yes** or **No** from the Emergency drop-down menu to indicate if the service was provided as a result of an emergency situation. The field will default to No if an option is not selected.
- 13. Select **Y** from the Family Planning drop-down menu if the service provided is related to family planning services. Leave the field blank if the service provided is not related to family planning services.

Information cannot be entered in the Status, Allowed Amount, and CoPay Amount fields. Information will populate these fields when the claim is submitted.

- 14. Enter a description of the service provided or performed in the Professional Service Description field if the provider is indicating an unlisted or not otherwise classified procedure code. In addition, enter information in this field for manual pricing purposes.
- 15. Click **Add** to add more details to the claim. Enter the necessary information for each detail added. Providers may enter up to up to 50 detail lines per claim.

16. Select the desired row and click **Delete** to remove a detail line. A dialog box will be displayed. Click **OK** to delete the specified row.

3.2.1 NDC Panel

ForwardHealth requires NDCs to be indicated on claims for all provider-administered drugs to identify the drugs and invoice a manufacturer for rebates, track utilization, and receive federal funds. A provider-administered drug is either an oral, injectable, intravenous, or inhaled drug administered by a physician or a designee of the physician (for example, nurse, nurse practitioner, physician assistant) or incidental to a physician service.

1. Click **NDCs for JCode** at the bottom of the Detail panel. The NDC panel will be displayed.

NDC (Detail 1	(tem 1)		
NO POWS TOUR	10 ****	Colort new share to undeter an aligh Add by the balance	
		Select row above to update - or- click Add button below.	
RX Number		🖕 Unit of Measure 🔍	
NDC Code		Drug Unit Price	
Quantity Unit		Prescription Date	
		Delete	Add

Figure 30 NDC Panel

Note: A corresponding detail line must be selected before any information can be entered on the NDC panel.

2. Click **Add**. A row will be added to the NDC panel and the fields will activate.

「NDC (Detail It	em 1)									
RX Number	NDC Code	Quantity Unit	Unit of Measure	Drug Unit Price	Prescription Date					
A		0		\$0.00						
	Type data below for new record.									
RX Number					Unit of Measure*		•			
NDC Code*					Drug Unit Price	\$0.00				
Quantity Unit*		0			Prescription Date					
							Dele	ete	A	dd

Figure 31 NDC Panel With Added Row

- 3. Click the applicable line item from the Detail panel if the user added multiple line items to the Detail panel. The NDC panel title will reflect the detail line item selected.
- 4. Enter the prescription number of the NDC in the RX Number field. If more than three numbers are entered, the up and down arrows will become active, allowing the user to scroll through the information entered.
- 5. Enter the NDC that supplements the procedure code entered on the detail line item in the NDC Code field.
- 6. Enter the number of units that are being requested for this claim in the Quantity Unit field.
- 7. Select the applicable Unit of Measure from the drop-down menu. Available options include the following:
 - F2—International Unit

- GR-Gram
- ME—Milligram
- ML—Milliliter
- UN—Unit
- 8. Enter the price per unit in the Drug Unit Price field.
- 9. Enter the date of the prescription in the Prescription Date field.

3.3 Other Insurance Detail Information Panel

The Other Insurance Detail Information panel is used to enter OI related information for the claim details.

If any information is entered in the Other Insurance Detail Information panel, all information must be supplied, even if it seems similar to information entered in the Other Insurance Header Information panel.

Other Insurance	e Detail Information			
*** No rows found	**			
Detail	1 -			
Carrier Number		Payment Date		
Carrier Name	Par	yment Amount		
			Delete	Add

Figure 32 Other Insurance Detail Information Panel

Note: Other Insurance information should be added to only the header, or both the header and detail depending on how the individual carrier adjudicated the claim.

- If the other payer's EOB to the provider contains detail specific information, the information should be added to both the header and detail.
- If the other payer adjudicated the claim only at the header (no detail specific information), the provider can only enter header information.
- If there is more than one other payer involved, it is possible for one payer to be entered only in the header and the other in both the header and detail depending on how the individual carriers adjudicated the claim.

To enter an Other Insurance detail:

1. If there is more than one carrier in the Other Insurance Header Information panel, scroll up to that panel and click the carrier for which to add the detail. The page will refresh and the carrier will be highlighted.

Other Insuranc	e Header Information						
Carrier Numbe	r Carrier Name	Claim Filling	Payment Date	Paym	ent Amount		
A 107	DELTA DENTAL PLAN OF WISCONSIN	11	01/20/2014	\$50.0	00		
A 001	AETNA SERVICES INC 009	L N	01/20/2014	\$50.0	00		
Carrier Number*	201 [Search]		Payment Da	te*	01/20/2014		
Carrier Name*	AETNA SERVICES INC 009		Payment Amou	nt*	\$50.00		
Claim Filing*	11-Other Non-Federal Programs	•	OI Circumsta	nce	•		
						Delete	Add

Figure 33 Select Carrier in Header

If there is only one carrier listed in the Other Insurance Header panel, step 1 may be skipped.

2. Return to the Other Insurance Detail Information panel and click Add.

Other Insurance Detail Informat	ion	
*** No rows found ***		
Detail 1 👻		
Carrier Number	Payment Date	
Carrier Name	Payment Amount	
		Delete Add

Figure 34 Other Insurance Detail Panel

Note: If Y is selected for a carrier in the OI Circumstance field in the header, the user will be unable to add information for that carrier in the Other Insurance Detail Information panel.

The page will refresh and a yellow row will be added to the top of the panel with the carrier's name and number. The fields will also become active to allow for further information to be entered. The Detail number will display as "1" but can be changed when adding additional information.

Other Insuran	ice Detail In	formation					
Detail Carri A 1 001	ier Number <u>Ca</u> Al	arrier Name ETNA SERVICES INC 009	Payment Date	Payment Amount \$0.00			
Detail*	1 -			·			
Carrier Number	001			Payment Date*			
Carrier Name	AETNA SER	VICES INC 009		Payment Amount*	\$0.00		
						Delete	Add

Figure 35 Carrier Added to Other Insurance Detail Information Panel

- 3. Select the detail number for which the OI information applies from the drop-down menu, if applicable. The default setting is the number of the detail selected on the Other Insurance Detail Information panel. A header value of 0 (zero) is not allowed on this panel.
- 4. Enter the date the other insurance paid the claim in the Payment Date field.
- 5. Enter the total amount of dollars the OI carrier paid on the detail in the Payment Amount field.

6. To add another carrier, scroll up to the Other Insurance Header Information panel and click the carrier for which to add the detail information.

Other Insuranc	Other Insurance Header Information									
Carrier Number Chim Filling Payment Date Payment Amount A 107 DELTA DENTAL PLAN OF WISCONSIN 11 01/20/2014 \$50.00 A 001 AETNA SERVICES INC 009 01/20/2014 \$50.00										
Carrier Number*	107 Search	Payment Date*	01/20/2014							
Carrier Name*	DELTA DENTAL PLAN OF WISCONSIN	Payment Amount*	\$50.00							
Claim Filing*	Claim Filing* 11-Other Non-Federal Programs		-							
				Delete	Add					

Figure 36 Select Additional Carrier in Header

When returning to the Other Insurance Detail Information panel, the previous carrier's information will be removed and the fields will be grayed out.

Other Insurance Detail Info	ormation	
*** No rows found ***		
Detail 1 💌		
Carrier Number	Payment Date	
Carrier Name	Payment Amount	
		Delete Add

Figure 37 Blank Other Insurance Detail Information Panel

7. Click **Add**. The page will refresh, a yellow row will be added to the top of the panel with the carrier's name and number. The fields will also become active to allow for further information to be entered.

Other Insura	ance Detail	Information							
Detail Ca	arrier Number	Carrier Name		Payment Date	Payment A	mount			
A 1 10)7	DELTA DENTAL PLAN	OF WISCONSIN			\$0.00			
Detail	* 1 ▼								
Carrier Numbe	er 107			Payme	nt Date*				
Carrier Nam	DELTA DE	NTAL PLAN OF WI	SCONSIN	Payment /	mount*	\$0.00			
							Delete	Add	

Figure 38 Additional Carrier Added

8. When finished adding carriers, the information for the last carrier entered will be added to the top row when going to another panel or clicking the Submit button.

3.4 Other Insurance EOB Information Panel

The Other Insurance EOB Information panel is used to enter the adjustment codes that explain why a carrier did not pay the billed amount.

Other Insurance EOB Infor *** No rows found ***	rmation	_	_	-		
Detail Carrier Number	0 -	Adjustment Amount				
Adjustment Code	[Search]	Group Code		-		
Adjustment Code Description			*			
					Delete	Add

Figure 39 Other Insurance EOB Information Panel

Note: If *Y* is selected for a carrier in the OI Circumstance field in the header, information cannot be added for that carrier in the Other Insurance EOB Information panel.

To enter an OI EOB code:

- 1. Click **Add**. A yellow row will be added to the top of the panel and the fields will become active to allow further information to be entered.
- 2. Select the Detail Number from the drop-down menu, if applicable. Leave at "0" (zero) if the OI paid at the header. Detail "0" indicates that the other insurance paid the claim at the header.
- 3. Use the drop-down menu in the Carrier Number field to select the Carrier Number from the carriers already entered on the claim.



Figure 40 Select Carrier Number

4. In the Adjustment Code field, enter the EOB adjustment code from the carrier's EOB. The EOB description will be entered automatically.

If an adjustment code is not available, search for one.

• To search for an adjustment code, click **Search** to the right of the Adjustment Code field.

Adjustment Code*	[Search]
Adjustment Code Description	طم) Adjustment Code Popup Search

Figure 41 Adjustment Code Search Link

The Adjustment Code search panel will be displayed.

Adjustment Code			[Close]
Search			3
Adjustment Code			
Adjustment Code Description			
5		search	clear
Search Results			
*** No rows found *	**		

Figure 42 Adjustment Code Search Panel

• Enter the adjustment code description.

Adjustment Code		[]	<u>Close</u>]
Search			3
Adjustment Code			
Adjustment Code Description	PATIENT IS COVERED BY A MANAGED CARE PLAN.		
		search cle	ar

Figure 43 Exact Description

If the exact description is unknown, use the "%" sign as a wildcard to search for any word or group of words in the description.

Adjustment Code			[Close]
Search			3
Adjustment Code			
Adjustment Code Description	%MANAGED CARE%		
		search	clear

Figure 44 Wild Card Search

• Click **Search**. The codes matching the query will be displayed in the Search Results section of the panel.

Adjustment Code			[Close]
Search			3
Adjustment Code			
Adjustment Code Description	PATIENT IS COVERED BY A MANAGED CARE PLAN.		
·		search	clear
Search Results			
Adjustment Code 🔺 🛛 Adjustmen	t Code Description		
120 Patient is	covered by a managed care plan.		

Figure 45 Search Results for Exact Description

Adjustment Code							[Close]
Search							3
Adjustn	nent Code						
Adjustment Code D	Description	%MANAGED	CARE%				
ч.,						search	dear
Search Results							
Adjustment Code	Adjustment	Code Description	נ				
104	Managed ca	are withholding.					
120	Patient is co	overed by a mai	haged care pl	an.			
24	Charges are	e covered under	a capitation	agreement/manag	jed car		
256	Service not	payable per ma	naged care c	ontract.			

Figure 46 Wildcard Search Results

• Click the applicable code. The Adjustment Code search panel will close, and the selected adjustment code and description will populate the fields on the Other Insurance EOB Information Panel.

Adjustment Code*	120	[Search]	Group Code*	
Adjustment Code Description	Patient is co	vered by a ma	anaged care plan.	^
				•

Figure 47 Adjustment Code and Description Added to the Panel

The following list includes some common American National Standards Institute (ANSI) codes that are used by ForwardHealth to process claims. Refer to <u>http://www.wpc-edi.com/reference/</u> online for the most current and complete listing of all valid ANSI codes.

Code	Description
1	Deductible Amount.
2	Coinsurance Amount.
3	Co-payment Amount.
23	The impact of prior payer(s) adjudication including payments and/or adjustments.
24	Charges are covered under a capitation agreement/managed care plan.
35	Lifetime benefit maximum has been reached.

Code	Description
45	Charge exceeds fee schedule/maximum allowable or contracted/legislated fee
	arrangement. (Use Group Codes PR or CO depending upon liability).
66	Blood Deductible.
96	Non-covered charge(s). At least one Remark Code must be provided (may be
	comprised of either the Remittance Advice Remark Code or National Council for
	Prescription Drug Programs Reject Reason Code.)
119	Benefit maximum for this time period or occurrence has been reached.
122	Psychiatric reduction.
149	Lifetime benefit maximum has been reached for this service/benefit category.

- 5. Enter the Adjustment Amount.
- 6. Select the Group Code from the drop-down menu.



Figure 48 Select Group Code

7. Click Add to add additional adjustment codes.

Otł	ier Ins	surance EOB	Info	rmation						
	<u>Detail</u>	Carrier Number	<u>Adju</u>	stment Code	Adjustment Amo	unt <u>Group Code</u>				
Α	1	001	120		\$0	.00				
		Det	ail*	1 •						
		Carrier Numb	er*	001 -		Adjustment Amount*	\$10.00			
	ļ	Adjustment Co	de*	120	[Search]	Group Code*	OA-Other adjustment	ts 🔹		
Adju	ustmen	t Code Descript	tion	Patient is o	overed by a	managed care plan.	*			
									Delete	Add

Figure 49 EOB Added

When finished adding EOBs, the last EOB entered will be added to the top row when going on to another panel or clicking the Submit button.

3.5 Medicare Information (Detail) Panel

Enter information on the Medicare Information (Detail) panel if the claim is secondary to a Medicare-allowed service.

Medicare Information(Detail)										
Line Number	1		Medicare Deductible	\$0.00	+					
Medicare Date Paid			Medicare Coinsurance	\$0.00	+					
Medicare Paid Amount		\$0.00	Psychiatric Reduction	\$0.00	+					
Medicare Non Covered Charge		\$0.00	Medicare Copayment	\$0.00	+					
			Remaining Patient Liability*	\$0.00	=					

Figure 50 Medicare Information (Detail) Panel

The Line Number field will be populated with the corresponding detail line number selected in the Detail panel.

Note: If Medicare denied a service, leave the fields on the Medicare Information (Detail) panel blank (or zero).

- 1. Enter the date that Medicare paid the detail line in the Medicare Date Paid field.
- 2. Enter the total amount that Medicare paid for the detail line in the Medicare Paid Amount field.
- 3. Enter the amount of the detail line not allowed by Medicare in the Medicare Non Covered Charge field.

Note: If Medicare does not cover the entire claim, do not use the Medicare Information (Header) and/or Medicare Information (Detail) panels. Return to <u>Step 7 of 3.1 Professional</u> <u>Claim Panel</u> to select the appropriate Medicare disclaimer code.

- 4. Enter the deductible amount that Medicare applied to the detail line in the Medicare Deductible field.
- 5. Enter the coinsurance amount indicated by Medicare for the detail line in the Medicare Coinsurance field.
- 6. Enter the amount of psychiatric service reduction for the detail line in the Psychiatric Reduction field.
- 7. Enter the Medicare copayment amount that the member paid for the detail line in the Medicare Copayment field.
- 8. Enter the remaining patient liability amount in the Remaining Patient Liability field. The remaining patient liability must equal the sum of the deductible amount, coinsurance amount, psychiatric reduction amount, and copayment amount.

3.6 Attachments Panel

Attachments			
*** No rows found ***			
	Select row above to update -or- click Add button below.		
Attachment Control Number Description			
	De	lete Ad	ld

Figure 51 Attachments Panel

1. Click **Add** if any attachments need to be included with the claim. A row will be added to the Attachments panel, and the Description field will activate.

The Attachment Control Number field is read-only. ForwardHealth will assign a number after the claim is submitted.

2. Enter a description of the attachment being submitted.

Attachments		
Attachment Control Number	Description A	
	Type data below for new record.	
Attachment Control Number		
Description E	Example	
		Delete Add

Figure 52 Attachments Panel With Added Row

Note: If it is indicated that an attachment will be included with the claim, the claim will suspend for seven days pending the receipt of the indicated attachment. Users may upload attachments electronically through the Portal or submit the attachment by mail or fax using the <u>Claim Form Attachment Cover Page</u>, F-13470, available on the ForwardHealth Forms page of the Portal.

3.7 Submit the Claim

The Claim Status Information panel at the bottom of the Professional Claim form will indicate that the claim has not yet been submitted.

Claim Status Information					
Claim Status Not submitted yet					
	Submit	Cancel			

Figure 53 Claim Status Information Panel

1. Ensure that information has been entered in all the required fields on the Professional Claim form.

Note: Since there is no Save feature for the Professional Claim form, if the claim is not submitted successfully and assigned an ICN, all information will be lost.

2. Click Submit.

If there is a problem and the claim does not process, an ICN will not be assigned, and an error message that indicates what needs to be corrected will be displayed at the top of the page.

						0
Professional Cla	im					U
Required fields are	indicated with an	asterisk (*).				
ICN			Rendering Provider		[Search]	
Provider ID	1234567890 NPI	•	Referring Provider 1		[Search]	
Member ID*			Referring Provider 2		[Search]	
Last Name			Medicare Disclaimer	no disclaimer	•	
First Name, MI		Othe	Insurance Indicator	The second secon		
Date of Birth						
Patient Account #			Total Charge*	\$0.00		
Medical Record Number		Oth	er Insurance Amount	\$0.00		
			Total Amount Paid	\$0	.00	

Figure 54 Error Message

If an attachment was indicated to be submitted with the claim, the claim will suspend, an attachment control number will be added to the Attachments panel, and the Upload Claim Attachments button will be displayed at the bottom of the page.

Claim Status	5 Infor	mation	
Claim Status S	USPEN	ID	
Claim ICN 2	31126	6001001	
Paid Amount \$	0.00		
EOB Informat	tion		
Detail Number	Code	Description	
0	2222	Policy not currently enforced.	
		Upload Claim Attachmer	nts

Figure 55 Submitted Claim With Attachments

If not ready to upload a file, exit from this page or go to another area of the Portal.

If ready to upload an attachment, click Upload Claim Attachments.

The Upload Claim Attachment File panel will be displayed. For information about uploading attachments, refer to the ForwardHealth Portal Uploading Claim Attachments Instruction Sheet, which is located on the Portal User Guides page of the ForwardHealth Portal.

If the claim is successfully submitted without an attachment, the Claim Status Information panel will display the ForwardHealth-assigned ICN and the claim's status. In addition, the EOB

Information panel will be displayed indicating how the claim was processed by ForwardHealth.

Claim Stat	us Info	rmation					
Claim Status	PAY						
Claim ICN	221125	9001022					
Paid Date	09/16/2	2011					
Paid Amount	\$11.91						
EOB Inform	ation						
Detail Numbe	er Code	Description					
1	9918	Pricing Adjustment	t - Maximum allowable fee pricing applied.				
				<u>C</u> ancel	Adjust <u>W</u>	Vo <u>i</u> d	Copy claim

Figure 56 Claim Status Information and EOB Information Panels

If the claim is denied or adjusted, an EOB code or codes will be displayed indicating the reason for the adjustment.